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On Beach Plain Road in Danville, just off Route 111A, sits the historic Union Church in the center of old North Danville.  Not much has changed at the church that was organized by the Union Religious Society in 1850.  In such a rural area as North Danville in the mid-eighteen hundreds, no one group had enough support to build their own church.  Consequently, the Freewill Baptists, Methodists and Congregationalists formed a “union” to build a place of worship.   Original shareholders financed the building at $25 each, and the pews were auctioned off for as much as $6.  Back at the time the church was being built, selling pews was a common way for a congregation to raise money.  The original pews sit just as they did 150 years ago with the names of the families that first owned them on their backs.

The church underwent renovations in 1892, with the addition of carpeting and pulpit furniture.  A large brass kerosene fired chandelier with eight oil burning lamps was added in 1894, and hangs over the pews in the sanctuary to provide light.  Two wood stoves are located at the back of the church with stovepipes that run the length of the room, front to back, to provide heat in the winter.

The one and only resident minister of the church was the Reverend Will Chappell, who preached from 1932 to 1934 on a regular basis, and then during the summer months for another ten years.  Prior to that the services were conducted by the presiding elders.

The thing that seems to get everyone’s attention at the Union Church however, is the antique organ.  While the organist plays, the large bellows are hand pumped by a volunteer in the church.  The hand pumped pipe organ listed in the Register of Antique Church Organs, was built in 1855 by the William Simmon Company of Boston, and was donated in 1938 by William Bakis as a memorial to his wife Flora.

At present, services are held only on Sundays during the month of July, and every Thanksgiving evening with guest ministers presiding.  Services are held as they were at the turn of the century.  Lacking electricity, lighting when needed, is provided by the antique chandelier, with the two wood stoves available if needed for heating.  

The North Danville Union Church is owned and maintained by the Union Religious Society Trust which is dedicated to preserving the history of Danville, along with the history and character of the Union Church.

